
   
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

City of Franklin, Indiana 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

 
June 4, 2014 

 

Members Present: 
 
Tim Holmes    President 
Phil Barrow    Vice-President  
Jim Martin    Secretary 
Brian Alsip    Member 
Rev. Richard Martin   Member 
 
Others Present: 
 
Joanna Myers    Senior Planner 
Alex Getchell    Associate Planner 
Lynn Gray    Legal Counsel 
Jaime Shilts    Recording Secretary 
      
Call to Order: 
 
Tim Holmes called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   
 
Swearing In: 
 
Lynn Gray swore in the audience en masse. 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
 
Lynn Gray stated that on the last page, there should be a period after “electronic message boards” and a 
capital letter starting in the next sentence.  Phil Barrow made a motion to approve the May 7, 2014 
minutes with corrections.  Jim Martin seconded the motion. The members voted unanimously to 
approve the minutes as presented. 
 
Old Business: 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Zoning Appeals – June 4th, 2014   Page 2 

 

New Business: 
 
ZB 2014-03 (SE & V) Greene Crop Consulting, Inc.:   

The property is located at 1042 N. 500 E.  The property is located within the buffer zone. The petition is 
for a special exception to allow agricultural product sales, distribution and facility storage use. The 
second petition is for a developmental standards variance to allow a freestanding sign to be a maximum 
of 32 ft. in area and no more than 6 ft. in height.  The variance is needed as the zoning ordinance only 
allows signs a maximum of 6 sq ft. in sign area and no more than 4 ft. in height in the agricultural zoning 
district. 

Dan Greene, crop consultant, stated that he works with farmers and soil fertility.  He stated he is at a 
point where he needs a location for his business.  He stated he would like to build a pole barn with an 
office in the front and storage for the truck and trailer.  He stated there is a house on the property and 
they would like to eventually live there. He also will need a sign in front of the business.  He stated the 
business and sign would be aesthetically pleasing and not distracting in any way.  They own 5 acres and 
the sign will be 100 feet off the road.  

Mr. Greene stated the sign location would be at least 20 feet from 500 East and 400 feet north of the 
intersection of 100 North.  

Mr. Greene stated the sign is unlikely to be a sight hazard for vehicle operators and oncoming vehicles.  
The lack of a sign may cause drivers to have to slow down or turn around in another homeowners’ 
driveway.  He stated the proposed sign would include a business logo and a few welcoming words.  

Mr. Greene stated the sign is planned to be simple, well kept, and attractive.  It will be 175 feet from the 
north property edge. There is farmland bordering the north, south, east and west. 

Mr. Greene stated that the sign will help people find the location of the business. He stated area 
homeowners would find the presence of the sign more practical than people turning around in their 
driveways.  He stated a slightly larger sign than currently allowed would reduce a number of issues while 
not adversely affecting anything.   

Mr. Greene stated in regard to Greene Crop Consulting and the general welfare; it will benefit Franklin 
and Johnson County economically at the new location through taxes and income. It will benefit 
customers and will be a neighbor to the community 

Mr. Greene stated in regards to development standards, the area is zoned Agricultural and the business 
would continue to support that segment of the community. He stated some of the land would continue 
to be crop farmed.  There will be farm fields to the north, south, east, and west.   

Mr. Greene stated the use of the property will be consistent to the intent of the ordinance.   

Mr. Greene stated in regard to the comprehensive plan, the use of the property will improve the 
viability of the farm community and economic growth in the local area. It will be maintained as an 
attractive business in Johnson County.  

Mr. Holmes questioned if people come to the business.  Mr. Greene stated that mostly he goes to their 
customers but there will be some customers that will come to the business. He stated it is not a high 
traffic business.  He stated they do not offer retail products.  They operate out of their house now.  He 
stated it would be nice to fix up the house on the property and live there and sell their current house. 

Mr. Getchell stated that Staff recommends approval on the special exception with the following 
condition: 



Board of Zoning Appeals – June 4th, 2014   Page 3 

 

1. All applicable federal, state, and local permits/approvals are required; including, but not limited 
to, compliance with all building and fire codes.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the variance with the following condition: 

1. Any illumination of the sign shall meet the standards set forth in Article 7, Chapter 18 – 
Exterior Lighting Standards. 

Ms. Gray asked Mr. Greene if he would be agreeable with Staff’s recommended conditions.  Mr. Greene 
stated that he was agreeable to it and would do whatever he had to do. 

Action taken on ZB 2014-03 (SE & V) Greene Crop Consulting, Inc.:   

Jim Martin made a motion to approve the special exception with the following condition: 

1. All applicable federal, state, and local permits/approvals are required; including, but not limited 
to, compliance with all building and fire codes.  

 

Brian Alsip seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   

Jim Martin made a motion to approve the variance with the following condition: 

1. Any illumination of the sign shall meet the standards set forth in Article 7, Chapter 18 – 
Exterior Lighting Standards. 

Phil Barrow seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  

ZB 2014-04 (SE) FiveKids Properties, LLC: 

The property is located at 1950 N. Graham Road.  The petition is for a special exception to allow the 
operation of a child daycare center in an IBD zoning district.    

Paul Maurer, Maurer Surveying, representing FiveKids Properties, LLC, stated they are asking for a 
special exception.  He stated they have a preliminary floor plan.  There is a common drive off of Graham 
Road will be shared with the development that will go in to the north.  He stated the building will be 
located to the south of the drive with play areas to the south.  He stated they are submitting plans next 
week for the site plan development process.  Mitch Salyers manages the existing Kid City Academy at 
752 International Drive and is looking to put up the building to expand his building, parking and 
playgrounds. 

Mr. Maurer stated the building will not be injurious to the public health.  He stated it is similar to the 
strip centers being developed on Commerce Drive.  

Mr. Maurer stated they do not plan on asking for variances regarding parking or landscaping.  

Mr. Maurer stated the special exception will not injure other properties.  He stated traffic will be heavier 
in the mornings and evenings but the use overall is a low intensive use. 

Mr. Maurer stated the granting of the variance will not interfere with the comprehensive plan.  It is a 
special exception use and there are similar businesses in the area.  

Mr. Martin questioned if the old building would stay open.  Mr. Maurer stated they would be moving 
everything to the new building as they lease their current facility.  Ms. Myers stated industrial business 
development allows for services such as dance studios and CPAs which are located in the smaller lots.  
She stated a daycare center is similar to the other uses. 

 



Board of Zoning Appeals – June 4th, 2014   Page 4 

 

Staff recommends approval with the following condition: 

1. All applicable federal, state, and local permits/approvals are required; including, but not 
limited to, completion of the Site Development Plan review process, and compliance 
with all building and fire codes. 

 

Action taken on ZB 2014-04 (SE) FiveKids Properites, LLC: 

Rev. Martin made a motion to approve the variance with the following condition: 

1. All applicable federal, state, and local permits/approvals are required; including, but not 
limited to, completion of the Site Development Plan review process, and compliance 
with all building and fire codes. 

 Jim Martin seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  

 

ZB 2014-05 (V) Patti Paris: 

The case has been continued to the July 2, 2014 meeting due to insufficient notice.  

 

Other: 

Ms. Myers stated that two zoning ordinance amendments will be heard at the Plan Commission meeting 
on June 17th, 2014.  One amendment is about the minimum parking stall size to go from 10’ x 20’ to 9’ x 
18’ and the other amendment is to allow full color electronic message boards. 

 
Adjournment: 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted this 2nd day of July, 2014. 
 
 
             
Tim Holmes, Chairman       Jim Martin, Secretary 


